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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
MICROSEC RESOURCES PRIVATE LIMITED.

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Microsec resources
private limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the atoresaid Ind AS financial statements give the information reguired by the Companies
Act, 2013, as amended ("the Act™) in the manner 50 required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in [ndia, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit including other comprehensive income, its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the vear ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS [inancial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the “Cuode of Ethics" issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is respnnanhie for the other mfﬂrmarmn The other
information u:tmpnm.é. ihe mfurnm!.mn uu.ludi.d in the Dm.f.lur 5 report, b 509l include
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Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with governance for the Ind AS
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directers is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and chatiges in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepled in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completencss of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the ’s financial

Teporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to ebtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to 1ssuc an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
o influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

= ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order 10 design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls with relerence to financial statements in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting cstimates and related disclosures made by management,

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or condirions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ahility to continue as a going cancern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as @ going concern.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and contenl of the Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying fransactions and events in a T
presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and o communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order’), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,

we give in the “Annexure 17 a statement en the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order.

2, Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

() On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act,

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
uf the Cumpdn}f w1lh reference to Eheqf: Ind AS financial stateme d

report;
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(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 has
been provided by the Company to its dircctors in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Compames {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to

s,

a)

b)
c)

d)

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 24(b) to
the Ind AS financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

i

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
helief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
have been advanced or loancd or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behall of the company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
ol the Ullimate Beneficiaries.

The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
have been received by the company from any person or entity,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall,
whether, dirsctly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party ("“Ultimate Bepeficiaries™) or pmwdu any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Ben
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iii. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(i} and (ii) of Rule 11 (e) as provided under (a) and (b} above, contain
any matgrial misstatement,

¢) The Company hasn’t neither declared or paid any dividend during the year
nor in the previous year.

f) Based on our examination which included test checks, of the financial
statements, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its
hooks of account, which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log}
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the soltware.

For § K AGRAWAL AND COLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn, No.- 306033E/E300272

L ﬂw“ﬂ- @ﬁﬂf‘ 3

Mamta Jain

Partner

Place: Kolkata Membership No: 061299

Dated: 29/05/2024 UDIN: 24061299BKEBYE4640




S K AGRAWAL AND CO CHARTERED SUITE NOS ;: 606-608
ACCOUNTANTS LLP THE CHAMBERS, OPP, GITANIALI STADIUM

AAl (£
[FORRERLY § K AGRAWAL AND C0) B Rl NS A IV AAL,

KOLEATA - 700 107
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
A ME = A 0902 /93 4
LLPIN  AAV-2876 PHONE : 033-3008 9502 /9903 /5304 / 95905

Wehsite © www skagrawal.co.in
i /
FRN- SUbU3ILIEI00472 EMAIL | Infoi@skagrawal.cain

ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MICROSEC RESOURCES PRIVATE
LIMITED

Referred to in paragraph 2 under *‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ seetion of our report of even date)

i)

i1)

In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment:

(a) The company has maintained proper records showing [ull particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(b) The Company has a regular program of verification to cover all the items of
Property, Plant and Equipment in a phased manner which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancics were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records
examined by us, the Company does not have any immovable properties of land
and buildings which are (rechold, as at the balance sheet date.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment during
the year.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no
proceedings initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder.

(a) The Company is engaged in the business of providing financial services and is not
required to maintain inventory records. Thus, the requirement of reporting under
this clause is not applicable.

(b) The company has not taken any working capital facility in excess of five crore
rupees, in aggregate, from financial institutions, therefor
applicable.
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i)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted
loans, during the vear to companies, covered in the register maintained under Section
189 of the Act. Accordingly; we report that;

{a) The principal business of the company is to give loans, so this clause is not
applicable

(b} terms and conditions of the grant of all such loans are not prejudicial to the
company's interest

{c) in respect of such loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of
interest has not been stipulated, the repayments are regular as and when due;

{d) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed, in respect of loans granted and advances in the nature of
loans provided by the Company, there is no overdue amount remaining
outstanding as at the balance sheet date

{e) The principal business of the company is to give loans, so this clause is not
applicable.

(f) The company has granted following loans to Promoters, related parties as defined in
clause {76} of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 without specifving any terms
or period of repayment:

Particulars Amount

Total Loans Given §76.96 lacs
Loans to KMP, Promolers & Directors 48.15 lacs

% Of Total Loans to Related Parties & Promoters 5.49%

iv)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in
respect of grant of loans, making investments, and provigdi nd securities
as applicable.

i —
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v)

vi)

vii)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company being a non-banking financial company, registered with RBI, the provisions
of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed
thereunder are not applicable. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (v) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

As explained to us, the Company is not required to maintain cost records prescribed
by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013,

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory
dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory ducs,
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and
Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the
appropriate authorties and no undisputed dues are in arrears as at March 31, 2023
for a period of mere than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the records of the Company, the ducs outstanding in respect of
various statutory dues on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the Nature of dues | Amount (Rs.) Period to Forum where
Statute which the dispute is
amount pending
relates
Income Tax Income Tax 36.88 2013-14 CIT Appeals
Act, 1961 ( Disallowance
of certain 1.02 2014-15 Income Tax
expenses) Appellate
Tribunal,
Kolkata
38.74 2016-17 CIT Appcals
L. Charterpq A
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viif)

X)

xi)

%11)

The company has not taken funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures; According to the
information and explanations given to us, there were no transactions which were not
recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

a, In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by
the management, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to
banks, financial institutions and government during the year.

b. The company is not declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or [inancial
institution or other lender:

¢. The Company has notl taken any ferm lean during the year and there are no
unutilized term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under
clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable,;

d. The company has nol raised funds on short-term, therefore the clause is not

applicable.

The company has not taken funds from any entity or person on account of or to

meet the obligations of its subsidiarics, associates or joint ventures;

f. The company has not raised any loan during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associale companies,

!,'".'.

The Company has not raised monevs by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the vear.

a. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us there were no fraud done by the company or no fraud on the company
has been noticed or reported during the year;

b. To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of
the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auvditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government,
during the year and up to the date of this report.

¢. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us there were no whistle-blower complaints, received during the year by
the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us , the
Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under
Order is not applicable to the Company.,
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xiii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is in compliance with Scction 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required
by the applicable Indian accounting standards.

xiv)
a. In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate
with the size and the nature of its business.

b. The Internal Audit requirement is not applicable to the Company.

xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable.

XWi)

a. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is
registered as required under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

b. The company is conducting Non-Banking Financial activities with a valid
Certificate of Registration (COR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;

¢. The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India,

d. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Group has only one
CIC as part of the Group i.c., Sastasundar Ventures Limited

xvii}) The company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 61,124 in the current financial year and
none in the immediately preceding financial vear;

xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year;

xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the

audit report that company is capable of meeting its liabiljti 5 the date of
A 0,
p

i
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sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date;

xx)  The provisions of second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies
Act are not applicable to the company.

For SK AGRAWAL ANDCO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.- 306033E/E300272

M fﬂ‘vm-i; %tm* "

Mamta Jain
Partner
Place: Kolkata Membership No: 061299

Dated: 29/05/2024 UDIN: 24061299BKEBYB4640
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MICROSEC RESOURCES PRIVATE
LIMITED,

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“ihe Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Microsec resources
private limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for estahlishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilitics include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and eflicient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's
policies. the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Owr responsibility is to express an opinien on the Company's internal linancial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing as
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, 1o the extent applicable to an audit
ol internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
linancial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures (o obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
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reporting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating efTectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures sclected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over [inancial reporting with reference to these financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
linancial reporting and the preparation of financial slatements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded a3 necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations ol management and directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable
assuranee regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effeet on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Finaneial Reporting with
Reference to these Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal finaneial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may oceur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
linzmeial reporting with reference to these financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in condilions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deter




ACCOUNTANTS LLP THE CHAMBERS, OPR. GITANIALI STADIUM

5. RAJDANGA MAIN ROAD, KASEA
[FORMERLY 5 K AGRAWAL AND CO) ARn; REJpANRGN oo e

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS KOLKATA-700 107
PH :
LLPIN ~ AAV-2926 OME : 033-4008 9502 /9303 /3904 [ 9905

Website ;| www.skagrawal.co.in
FRN- 306033€/£300272 EMAIL : Info@skagrawal.co.in

Ok S K AGRAWAL AND CO CHARTERED SUITE NOS : 606-608

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
over flinancial reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal [inancial
controls over financial reporting with reference 1o these financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting eriteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

For SK AGRAWAL AND CO LLP
Chartered Accountanis
Firm Regn. No.- 306033E/E300272

MPL yﬁh-mh-

305033 |

e 3033€ 1 852
T Mamta Jain
Partner
Place: Kolkata Membership No: 061299

Dated: 29/05/2024 UDIN: 24061299BKEBYB4640
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AUDITOR'S REPORT UNDER RESERVE BANK OF INDIA
NBEC DIRECTION.2016 for the vear Ended 31.03,2024

To,
The Board of Directors,
Microsee Resources Private Limited

As required under Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s report (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 and on the basis of information and explanation given to us, we report that:

3A]
1. the company is engaged in the business of non-banking financial institution as defined
in section 45-1(a) of the RBI Act and meeting the principal business criteria (Financial
assel/income pattern) as laid down vide the Bank’s press release dated April 08, 1999,

and directions issued by DNBR, the company has obtained a Certificate of Registration
from the Bank.

2. On the basis of Balance Sheet & Profit & loss account for the vear ended 31.03.2024
m our opinion the Company is entitled to continue to hold such certificate of
Registration in terms of its Principal Business Criteria (Financial asset/income pattern).

3. On the basis ol Balance Sheet & Profit & Loss account for the year ended 31.03.2024
in our opinion the Company is meeting the required net owned fund requirement as laid
down in Master Direction- Non-Banking Financial Company- Nen-Systematically
Important Non-Deposit taking company (Reserve Bank) Directions.201 6.

aC]
1. The Board of Directors has passed a resolution for Non-Acceptance-of any Public
Deposits.
2. The Company has not accepted any deposil from the public during the vear ended 31st

March, 2024,

3. The Company has complicd with the prudential Norm relating to the Income
Reecognition, Accounting Standards, asset classification and provisioning for bad and
doubtful debts as upphmble to it in Non-Banking E’*mancml {‘\Inn Dapmrﬁ Accepting or
Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) D :
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4. The Company is not systematically Impertant Company as defined in Paragraph 3(xviii)
of the Non-Banking Financial Company Non systematically important Company Non

depaosit taking Company (Reserve Bank) 2016.

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 29/05/2024

For S K AGRAWAL AND COLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.- 306033E/E300272

T 12 %_Ml

Mamta Jain
Partner
Membership No: 061299

UDIN: 24061299BKEBYB4640



MICROSEC RESOURCES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIM- US1 109 R 1S54 PTCOERS0S
Arimgan] House, 7, Camac Street, 2rd Floor
Kolkata - 700017
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024
Rs. la Lacs
Particulars Mote Na. As at March 31, 2024 | Asat March 31, 2023
ASSETS
1. Financial Assets
|a} Cash and cash pquivalents 3 7.3 B.62
{b) Loans 1 £76.96 87838
[} Investments 5 2,261.26 1,766.03
[d] Cther financial sssets [ 0.83 0.56
3.196.36 2,653.59
2. Non Financial Assets
(=) Current Tax Assets [Net) T 123.36 118.68
(b} Deterred Tax Assets (Met) ! - 217
i) Property, plant and equipment q 1.01 0.76
(d} Cither non-financial assets 10 4,94 4.39
12931 126.00
TOTAL ASSETS 327567 277959
LIABILITIES AND EQULITY
Lizbilities
1. Fimandial Liabilities
{a) Payahles
(1) Trade payables 11
{1} Total owtstanding dues of micre enterprises and small 087 -
enlerprizes
{ii] Tetal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 0.06 071
enterprises and small enterprizes
(b} Other financal labilities i? 2,70 3.05
B 3.73 3.76
2. Non Financial liabilities
(@) Provisions 13 10.71 943
(b} Deferred Tax Liahifiey (Net) kA 39.93
{c} Other non-financial Liakilities 14 .82 0.37
51.46 8.80
3. Equity
(2] Couity share capital 15 258.14 #5814
(b} Other equity 16 2,962.34 2,507 .89
3,220.48 2,766.03
TOTAL LIABILTIES AND COQUITY 3,275.67 2,7715.59
Summary of Material Accounting Policies 2.2
The accompanying nates are an Integral part of the finsnclal statements
As per our report of even date
For & K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and an behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
|Firm Registration No: ansunsfsauuz?z .
a4 WL s ‘R’f ) o e S e w1
Mamga Jain Banwark Lal Mittal Havi Kant Sharma
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 061299 DIN 1 D03E5E09 DiN : 00364066
kFlal:e: Kolkata e
Date: 29th May, 2024 __ Kolkala___—=




MICROSEC RESOURCES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN- US1108WR1994PTLOGE509
Arimgan| Kause, 7, Camac Street, 2nd Floor
Kelkata - 700 017

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

Rs. In Lacs
|
Particulars Rote No. 2023-24 2022-23]
Incoma
I |Revenue from Operations 17
Interest Income 76.03 74.07
Dividend Income 1.43 b.85
Profit from sale of Investrments 134.39
Falr Value Gain on Investments carried at fals wilue through profit and loss 357.64 .
Tatal Revenue From Operations (1) 569.49 74.95
I, | Other Incames 18 . 2.0B
. |Total income {1+ 1) 569,49 1701
IV, Expensos
Firance Cost 15 0,25 -
Employes Bensfits Expense 0 38.07 3350
Depreciation g 0.20 oo
Other Expenses 21 B.78 o417
Total Expenses {IV) 47.30 57.68
V. |Prefit/ (Loss) before tax for the year (Il - 1V) 522.19 (20,671
VI. |Tax Expense :
() Current Tax 25.04 a7z
i) Deterred Tax 102 1.21
(g} Income Tax of prigr years 0.93 -
Total Tax Expenses (Vi) 67.99 993
Wil |Profitf [Loss] for the year [V - V1) 454.20 130.60)
Vill. | Other Comprehensive Incame/ (Lass) (0C1)
Item that will not be subsequently cdlassified to profit or loss account
(a} Re-measurement gains/losses on defing benefit ooflgatians 0.33 (3.09)
(b} Income tax effect on above {0.08) 0.r8
Other Comprehensive Income/ (Lass) for the year, net of income tax 0.25 {2.31)
I¥  |Total Comprehensive Income [ (Loss) for the year (V1] + Wil 454.45 (32,91}
Earnings per share - Basic and Diluted (Nominal value Rs, 10 per share) 27 17.60 (1,19)
Summary of Material Accounting Policies 2.2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financlal staements
As per ow report of even date
For 5 K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behall of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 306033E/E300272
. S
ﬁ-— ‘[} [!-\ _Lf o e \ P2esii vl
ﬂ‘v’lrk. 2 Chartereg Aca 4
Mafmta Jaln A AN-2850 %q} Banwari Lal Mittal Ravi Kant Sharma
Partner " ‘gl Director Director
Membership No. 061293 _\r., a DiN : DO365409 DIN ; 00364066
A
Szl

Place: Kolkata
Date: 29th May, 2024




TIN- US1109WB 1994 FTCOGESDS
Azimgan] Howse, 7, Camac Street, Znd Floor
Kollkata - 700 517

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

MICROSEC RESOURCES PRIVATE LIMITED

Ks. In Lacs
Particulars 202323 027-33]
A, Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit / {Loss) before tax 522.19 {HLET)
Adjustments to recongife profit/{loss) before tax to net cash fowe:
Depreciation 0,20 0
Finance Cost 0.25 -
Gratulty Expenzes 1.60 137
Interest on Flxed Deposits and Others - {206}
Frovision for Standard Aszots - 00
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 524.24 [21.20)
Maovemant in working capital:
lincrease)f Decrease in Loans L4z {A0.6%)
(Increase)! Decroase in Investments {495,23) A251
[Increaself Decrease in Dher Financials Asssts [o.27) 117
{increase)/f Decrease in Olher Mon- Financals Assels {0.55) 10,37}
Increase [ {Decrease} in Trads Payahies 0.32 10.05)
Increase f {Decrease] in Othes Flnancial Uabiliies [0.35) 0o
Increase /f (Deerease) in Other Nen: Financa! Ushilitias 0.45 {0.01)
Increase f [Decrease) In Provisions 001 .01y
Cazh generated from [ (used) in cperations 30,04 [18.47)
Incame-tas paid (et of refunds) {30.65} rpaz
Met cash generated from f [used in] operating activitios 4] {0.61) 345
B. Cash Flows from Investing Actlviiies
Purchase of property, plant and equlprment Including apital advances {0.45)
Met cash generated from [ [used in) investing activities |6) {0.45]
€. Cash Flows from Financing Actlvities
Loam Taken B0LT
Repayment of Lean Taken {E0.D0)
Flnarice Cost pald [0.25) .
Met cash generated from [ (used In) finanging activities ) {0.25}) -
|2 Metincrease f(decrease) in cash and cash squivalents [A+B4L) [A+B=C} {1.31) 3.45
E. Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 8,62 ciT
F. Cash and Cash Cquivalents at the end of the year 7.31 H62

Explanation:
1 The ahove Cash Flow Statamorit has bean prepared under the “|ndirect Method® 25 5et

ot in Ine AS — 7 "Statomant of Cach Flows™

2, Components of Cash & Cach Fquivalents [Refzr Note 3 Rs: In Lags
As at March 31, A at March 31,
2024 2033
Cash on Hand .05 oo
Bolancas with Darks:
I Current Actounts 71.26 B.52
Total 7.1 B.62

Summary of Material Accounting Policies 22
Thit accompanying notes-are an integral part of the Nnancial statérments
As per aur report of even dyle

For 5 K Agrawal and Co Charlered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Régistration No: 3060336/E300272

Mavwta

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors

g ul N ¥

i

G ¥

M lain Banwari Lal Mittal Rawl iant Sharma
Partner Directar Directar
1M|:mbershlp N, 061299 DIN ; 00365809 [DIN : 00364066
Place: Kolkata )
!nm:mhmy,mu S IngnaE 1 7
=t A
- Lolgate
ﬂa_._‘___—-___\_.__.__-.-—_._



MICROSEC RESOURCES PRIVATE LIMITED
Cik- L5 1209 W B 1994 P T COGR509
Azimgan] House, 7, Camac Street, 2nd Floor
Kaolkats - 700 017

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

A) Equity Share Capital (Refer Note 15)

The accompanying notes are an Intsgral part of the financial statements
As per owr report of even date

For 5 K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm istration No: 306033E/E300272

@

L]

Marmta lain
Partnor
Membership Mo, 061293

i
H"“"‘;'—_‘—E".—-ll'h_ai_lﬂi:ﬁ

Flace: Kolkaia
Date: 29th May, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

g E

Bamwiari Lal Mittal
Directar
DN : 0365309

1) Current reporting year RS I Lags
T
Change In equity
Change in Equity
Balance as at April 1, 2023 Shara Cagital due mmﬁ';:; s d :]har;l:apml " ':::;:1;! a: "
to prior year ervors | ek VNV Sl %200
a | year
25814 | 255,14 | A 258.14
2] Previous reporting year ] R in Lacs
Change in equity
Change in Equity .
Balance as at Apell 1, 7022 share Capital due Rd-ﬁate:[ balance as sharo capital Balance as at
at April 1, 2022 | during the current | March 31, 2423
b0 prior year errors Saide
258,14 25814 258.14
H] Other Equity [Refar Note 15)
1} Current reparting year Rs. In Lacs
Reserves and Surplus
Hesierve under Retainod earnings
Socurities Section 45-IC of {including Other Tatal
Pramium the Reserve Bank | Conersl Reserve Comprehensive
of India Act, 19348 Incame)
Balance as at April 1, 2073 1,998.96 157,56 16236 194.01 2,507.89
Profit/[Loss) for the yeas = . 454,20 454,20
lransterred ta Resarves wis 45-1C of the Resorve Bank
of india Act, 1934 - 5084 - {90.84) .
Dither comprehensive Income/’ [kass) for the yoar . - - 0.25 0.25
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,998,506 243.40 162.36 557.62 1.962.34
2) Previous reparting year Ra In Lacs1
Reszrves and Surgplus
Ressreg under Retained earnings
Securities Section 45-1C of G e {including Other Total
Premium the Reserve Bank | ik i Lomprehensive
of India Act, 1934 Incomae)
Halance as at April 1, 2022 1,998.95 15256 162.36 23692 2.540.80
Profit/{Loss) for the year + . (30.60] {H0.60)
Transforred to Reservies Ufs 45-1C of the Reserve Dank -
of India Act, 1934 : *
Other comprehensive incame/ {loss) for the year - {231} {2.31]
Balance as at Mar_Eh 31, 2023 1,998.58 152 56 162.36 10401 4,507.89
Summary of Materizl Accounting Palicies 2.7

—\

\
1

§

Ravl Kant Sharma
Director
DIN : MOIE40GE

S
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Microsec Resources Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

1. Corporate Information

Microsec Resources Private Limited ("Company” or "MRPL") is a private company domiciled in India. The
registered office of the company is located at Azimganj House, 2nd Floor, 7 Abanindra Math Thakur Sarani
(formerly Camac Street), Kolkata - 700 017. The Company is a non- banking financial company engaged in the
business of Financing.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company has been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time fo
time) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and presentation requirements of Division il
of Schedule IIl to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 11},

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 29th May 2024.

The financial statements have been prepared on a histarical cost basis except certain financial assets and
liabilities which are measured at Fair Value as required by the relevant Indian Accounting Standards.

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs (in two decimals),
except when otherwise indicated.

The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going
concern.

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
a. Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each halance sheet date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to cell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to <ell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

% Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
% In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous ma riket for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into accourit a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its best possible manner or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its best possible manner.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant ohservable inputs and minimising the
use of unohservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whaoke:

» Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical a
& Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input thati

measurement is directly or indirectly ohservable 3




Microsec Resources Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

% Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Far the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of their nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

b. Income Recognition

At contract inception, Company assesses the goods or services promised in a contract with a customer and
identify as a performance obligation each promise to transfer to the custorner. Income is recognised upon
transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount of the transaction price that is
allocated to that performance obligation and that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to
receive in exchange for those products or services,

Interest income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss using the effective interest method in case of
Financial Assets at Amortised Cost.

Dividend income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the right to receive dividend is
established except in case of dividend from Mutual Funds, which are recognized on cash basis.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recagnised when control of the goods or services are transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflecls the cansideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

c. Income Taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the Statement of profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty,
if any, related to income taxes. |t is measured using tax rates {and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current-tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the tax bases and accounting bases of assets and
liabilities at the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date.

Defarred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

recognised to the extent that it has become pru_‘qal:le'-._ hat fu_ture taxa
asset to be recovered. - 12




Microsec Resources Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on either the same taxable entity
or different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax
assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

For items recognised in OCl or equity, deferred / current tax is also recognised in OCl or euity.
d. Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, Plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of
bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located,

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equiprent.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment s recognised in statement of profit
and loss.

Depreciation is calculated on a Written Down Value (WDV) basis aver the estimated useful lives of the assets
as follows:

[ Type of Asset Useful Life estimated by the
| management ;
Building 60 Years |
Plant &'Equipment 5-15 years
Computers 3 years !
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Electrical Equipment 10 years
Motor Vehicles é'n,.rea s ]

The Company depreciates the cost of Property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over
estimated useful lives which are as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013
except Plant & Equipment which is lower than those indicated in Schedule Il i.e. 5-15 years. The management
believes that these useful lives are realistic and reflect fair appraximation of the period over which the assets
are likely to be used.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if
appropriate. Based on the technical evaluation, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as
given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets,

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rate basis 1.e. fro
ready for use (disposed of). A



Microsec Resources Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

e. Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amartisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected usefu! life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or methed, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of
carrying value of another asset.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal li.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no
future economic benefits are expected from ils use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of
the asset [calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

r_'I"gu:uz of Asset Useful Life estimated by the |
~ management B
Computer Software 5 Years |

f.  Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assels, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. IF any such indication exists, then
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash Inflows are combined together into
cash-generating units {CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest Group of assets thal gencrates tash inflows
that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in
respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and
then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or Group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company
raviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount, Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation pr amartisation, if no impairment loss
had been recognised.

g. Provisions

A provision is recognised If, as a resuit of a past event, the Company has a presen structive
obligation that can be estimated refiably, and it is probable that an outflow i
required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time valug of money is m .
by discounting the expected future cash flows {repres»en:l'f?ig the best esti #i the eﬁ;: fture reqk;,!i
settle the present obligation at the balance sheet da‘te}ﬁaj_,'a jpre-tax #d that refject currg

\th : 306035 =
~_ 5 \a




Microsec Resources Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised as a finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

h. Employee benefits
short term employee benefits

short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Post-retirement benefits

Post-retirement benefits to employee can either be through Defined Contribution Plan or Defined Benefit
Plan.

Defined Contribution Plan

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund and E5l is & defined contribution scheme. The Company has
no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund scheme and ES| as an expense, when an employee renders the
related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date
exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after
deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for
carvices received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the
pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined Benefit Plan

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a
separately administered fund.

The caleulation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on
plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of tha asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest}, are recognised in
OCL. The Company determines the net interest expense {income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for
the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of
the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net
defined benefit lability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments, Net
interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan s curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service (“past service cost’ or ‘nast service gain’) or the gain or loss on cu rtallment is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognisas gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit
plan when the settlement occurs.

i.  Financial instruments

Recognition and Initial measurement

Loans, debt securities and borrowings issued are initially recognised when
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised. when the
contractual provisions of the instrument. o
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A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and Subsequent measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortised cost; Fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) — equity investment; or FVTPL. Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent
to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing
financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if it meets both the conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL: i) The asset is held within a business madel whose obiective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and ii) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OC! (designated as FYOC!| - equity investment).
This election is made on an investment by investment basis,

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FWOC as described above are measured at
FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at
FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise
arise.

The subsequent measurement of gains and losses of various catepories of financial instruments are as follows:
(i} Financial assets at amortised cost: these assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or less an derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

i) Equity investments at FVOCI these assels are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of
the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL: these assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at
FUTPL if it is classified as held- for- trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition.
Einancial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and Losses, including any interest
expense, are recagnised in profit er loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets: The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred, or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of o ErT retain
pany y Apddfggs ot re

control of the financial asset. If the Company enters into transactions whershg i & 3SFIS ed
on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially al*_hﬂoft'h_e risks an ro%'of the transferred :
the transferred assets are not derecognised. i\ sl .

=" Kolkata
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Financial liabilities: The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are
modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial
liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit
or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
sither to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment

The Company recognizes loss allowance using the expected credit losses (ECL) rmodel for the financial assets
which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant
financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assels, expected
credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in cradit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime £CL. The amount of
expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the
amount that is required to be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss,

j. €ashand cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the
Company's cash management.

k. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders of parent
company (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the pericd.

Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to
participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus
element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the
number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders of the parent company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

. Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whaose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company
or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of rescurces will be
required to settle the obligation. A ¢ g_ﬁtﬂ?ﬂ'ﬁ iLy-atsa_arises in extremely rare cases where there is a
liability that cannot be recognized feea '.j‘{ﬁa';wt s E g IR
stéﬁ:ein tﬁlinﬁcial T T
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m. Segment Reporting

The Company is engaged mainly in the business of Financing. These, in the context of Ind AS -108 on Segment
Reporting are considered to constitute one single primary segment. Further, there is no reportable secondary
segment i.e, Geographical Segment.

n. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or praduction of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

0. Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates

Investrments in equity shares of subsidiaries and associates are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and
written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries and
associates, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.3 Standards issued but not effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA"] notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended 31 March
2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the
Company.

2.4 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management o make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assels and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods.

a. Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation technigues
including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF} model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values, Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liguidity risk, credit risk and volatility (i.e. market
risk). Changes in assumptions about these factors could alfect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
See Note 27, 28 and 29 for further disclosures.

b. Retirement and other Employee benefits

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due "y !Exlttes |n~.rulved in the ualuatmn and its Inng ~term nature a
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currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. The martality rate is based on publicly available
mortality tables for India. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic
changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 23,
c. Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond
the control of the company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

d. Claims, Provisions and Contingent Liahilities

The Company has ongoing litigations with various third parties / regulatory authorities, Where an outflow of
funds is believed to be probable and a reliable estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be made based on
management’s assessment of specific circumstances of each dispute and relevant external advice,
management provides for its best estimate of the liability. Such accruals are by nature complex and can take
number of years to resolve and can involve estimation uncertainty. Information about such litigations is
provided in notes to the financial statements.
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|NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

EHﬂTE 3: Cash and cash equivalents

R In Lacs

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Cash and cash eguivalents
Cash on hand 0.05 010
Balances with Banks:

Liy Current Accounts 1.26 8.52
] 7.31 562
[NOTE 4: Loans (At Amaortised Cost] Rs. Inlacs

As at March 31, 2024

Asat March 31, 2023

Unsecured considered good, unlass otherwise stated
Repayable on Demand

Loan to To Related Parties (Refer Mote 25) A8.15 9296

Others

Loan to Others Parties B2R.B1 78542
B76.96 87838

* Lpansare providged within India

Type of borrower as on March 31, 20249

Type of Borrower

Amount of loan or
atdvance in the nature
of loan outstanding

Loans to related party

% to the total Loans
and Advances in the
nature of oans

- 1o Tellow subsidiary

45.24

5.16%

- to Key Management Personnel

2.91

0.34%

Type of borrower as on March 31, 2023

Type of Barrower

Amount of loan ar
adwvance in the nature
of loan outstanding

% to the total Loans
and Advances in the
nature of loans

Loans to related party

- to fellow subsidiary

79.62

9.06%

- to Key Management Personnel

13.34

1.52%

Disclosure of loans given to related parties required under section 186{4) of Companies Act, 2013

IParti:uIars As at March 31, 2024 | A= at March 31, 2023
Dpening balance 92.96 95.69
Laans glven 6,00 26,10
Interest accrued {Met of TDS) 8.72 ¥.35
Repayment of Interest (Net of TOS) {7.73) {5.46)
Regayment of Principal amount (48.80) {30.72]
Closing balances 48.15 97.98
Particulars As at March 21, 2024 | As at March 31, zﬂlt
Type of Borrowers Related Parties Related Parties
Amcunt of loan or advance in the nature of loan outstanging 48.15 92.96
Rate of Interast *

Percantage 1o the total loans and advances in the nature of loan 5.49% 10.58%

repayable on demand,

demand,

*Loans include loans to fellow subsidiary, My Joy Technologies Put. Ltd, given at a rate of interest of 9% p.a simple interast

*Loans include Ioans to employes, Mr. Sanjay Aparwal given at a rete of interest of 9% p.a. compounding interest repayable on
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|MAOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR EMDED WAKCH 31, 2029
|MOTE 8 © investments R I laes
::l:'::: Mo ol Mg el March 31, Hewaf Hs at Muwrgh 31,
Bt Shares/ Units 124 Shares/ Linis Iy
[Invsstiment in Unguoted Mutual Fund [fully paid up)
|l i b Falr Walwe throwgh Proft & Loss Account)
Kotak Masdag 100 FOF- Dirsct Fan a 176717833 27324 91,84, 282,20 1000?
fuditya Birla Sun e FSU Equity Fund Drect-Growth - T.A2 Ba6.88 252,57 2.5 403 A7 £3.57
HOFC Top 100 Fuind - Oirect plan = Grorach Opklen - ErR EEW ] 35188 - -
Mippan India Larga Cap Fund - Qiroct Groeth Plan Growis ) 4,18.289.95 S50 .
Optian
WO Flesl Cap Fumd Direct plan - Growth 15,08,152.41 233.04 -
HDFL Ligguicd Fund - Direck Man - Growth Cption - 108420 aliA AESAL .43
(&) 153334 1,674.11
investments hold under PMS Afe with Microses Wealth
Management Limated- MOF
{Valued at Fair Vobue through Profit & Loss Account) ]
Quoted Eguity Shares [fully paid up)
Aabatt india Lemted 13 F 5| .24 3 5,07
ARL Apolio Tubed Limited 2 - 73 3
Apcllo Hospitals Sntarprisa Limited - 3 | A1.51 -
Hutls Band Limived z - E 27 198
Daja) buto Limat=d iG ] B.14 - -
Balkrishna indastries Limited r - . 183 3NT
Dhary Airgel Limsted 13 m 3.8 -
Blue 2tar Umited i 20z 2,37 =
Carnvtral Depniinesy Services {Inda) Lenited ] 21F an
Cera Sanitarpware Lmited ] E 35 444
Cala Lyt 2 2713 .63 -
Colgate-Palmalve (India) Lirmited 10 156 443
Crafysman Automation Limmed 5 - - &7 L1E
Cumming Incks Lipited 2 - 2 347
Calmia Bharat Limized 2 - - 219 451
Eeooeia Kubrola Limited i - 20 EX-H
Godre] Consumer Products Limited 1 259 124 37 4,18
Grasam indusaries Lo 2 03 Z36 - '
Havell inda Lirined 1 - . 3 753
HOL Technalagies Limsbed 2 ass 553 - =+
Hindustan Petroloum Cafporaiion Limited 10 A AL . .
.| K. Cement Limit=c 10 - 110 322
KR, Al Lt 1 = ] 23
Kajarls Caramica Limlted 1 - - 478 S04
LET Technology Servicas Limmad 3 158 1086 - 3
Lierien And Toubra imited 2 131 453 #a £33
LTI Minsliree Lirnl=d 1 - o 238
Mahindea And Malirdra Lirvited 5 150 2,58 axy 403
BARF Limnitad i 3 .00 &30
Hardyana Hiuddyaiaya Limiled 10 33a 4.4 . .
[NTRC Limited n 1152 wHy -
Cracle Financial Sarvices Softeare Limited 5 34 e - -
Pl Industr s Limited 1 - . (2] am
Fidilite Inustries Limeted 1 114 158 -
Palycals brdia Lirated 10 - ;| 1% 438
Pawer Grid Corooration OF incfa Limited i 1,281 1.55 -
Ralla India Limaed i . . 1404 ]
Siernens Limited 2 s - [ 250
K incka Limiced 1 . . 5d 230
Euﬁ Prarmace idical Industres Limitsd 1 Sz lLH'I = -
uridram Fastoners Limitod 1 = 56 5458
| Tala Comyttiney Sevvicas Limiag 1 111 .63 = -
[Tata Coraumer Products Lmited i E U1 153 -
The Indian Hatels Compainy Limited 1 TET 119 -
The Sopreme [ndestrey Lmited 2z - - g 513
Tran Campany rmitd i 116 LAl - .
TWE Mator Compony Limited 1 X3 155 247
Ultratech Camard Limited i 55 536 i1
Forrale Limated 1 2,186 EX TS -
[} 12083
Investments {Vakied at amartised ost)
Unigu ated Equity Shares (fully paid wp}
In Wholly Owned Subsddiory Companies
Micraste Wialth Mansgement Lrd 1] L0, =il 0,080,000
(€] EO0.00 [ ]
TOTAL [A+B+L) | L6126 1,756,023
Eimail
Aggregate amount of Qualed investment 12702 0147
Agmregate amount ol Uaguoted levestment 213134 167411
fggregate amount of Impairmant in vibue ol investment - .
Pt
1) AT envmstrniesils are witlin Inelis caly, Mo investments haes been made cutside sl
2 Information nbowt the fair yolus measurement and Cospaan's expisiine o credt and mardnet isks i includnd '» Wota pa, 28, 29 and 30,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

MOTE 6 : Other Financial Assets {Unsecured considered Rs, In Lacs
As at March 31, A5 at March 31,
2024 2023
Security Deposits 0.25 0.25
Receivables against Investments 0.58 031
0.83 0.56
RS In Lacs
o1 As at March 31, Ax at March 31,
Break up of finencisl assets casried at Amortised Cost 2024 023
Cash and cash equivalents (Noze 3) 731 B.62
Laans (Note 4) 876.96 8rg.38
Investmients {Nobe 5] 500,00 B00.00
Other financial assets (Note 5) 0.E3 0.5k
1,485.10 1,487.56
NOTET ;. Tax Assets (Net) (Unsecure nsidered pood) Rz, In Lacs
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Incomie Tax Recenvables
(Mot of Provisigns: Rs. 25,04 Lacs) (Mareh 31, 2023: Rs. 8.72 Lacs) hid 11368
123.36 1_11;_.}5:&“
A. The Income tax expense consist of the following; Rs. In Lacs
: As at March 31, Az at March 21,
S 2024 2023
Current Tasx:
Current Tax expanse for the year 25,04 572
Cwrrent tax expense { (benefith pertaining to prior years 0.93
Deferred tax:
Deferred Tax expenses for the year 42.02 1.21
Total Income Tax expense recognised in the year 67.99 993
B. Tax axpenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows: 5. In Lacs
Particulars AsatMarch31, | AsarMarch3L
N 2024 2023
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax from continuing operations 512.19 {20.67)|
Indian statitary Inconne Lax rote 15.168% #5.168%
Expected income tax expense 131.42 {5:200
Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected Income tax expense to reported Income tax
expense :
Incremental Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liabiilty) on aceount of Property, Plant and Equipment - oo
Incremental Deferred Tax (Asset] [/ Liability on account of Financial Assets and Other tems 42.02 1.20
Effoct of different Lax rate on certain items (106.77) 13.58
Tax pertaining Lo prior years 053 -
Others 0.39 .34
Total income tax expense 67.99 593
MNOTE 8 : Deferred Tax Assets{ !liabililies! !Neti As. In Lacs
Az at March 31, As at Mareh 31,
2024 20323
Deferred Tax Asset
Provision for standard assets 0.55 0,55
Tax impact on Other Cormprehensive Incomis 0,49 0.58
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of Prafit and Loss in the Current vear but aliowed
for tax purposes on payment basis., 23 18
Sub Total (A) 318 2495
1nererted‘l‘ax Liability
Tax impact aising on temporar ble assets 0.09 0.0%
Ta irnpact on Fair Valwat] A 43.02 069
Sub Total (B) V-Enﬁ;{.‘;ﬂ{,‘\\ a3.11 0,78
7 ! ANAN
Net Deferred Tax Afs: ,.Hl.lahllitlesl (A-B) 1,\[\,_,‘\1\. ] 2] .Y (39.83) 217
RTYAY/A a
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

NOTE 3 : Property, plant and equipment Rs. In Lacs]
Computers Furrjlture Al Total
Fixtures
GRO5S BLOCK
As at April 1, 2022 0.81 0.17 0.98
Additions = -
Deductions - -
As at March 31, 2023 0.81 0.17 0.98
Additions 0.45 0.45
Deductions - - -
As at March 31, 20249 1.286 0.17 143
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
As at April 1, 2022 0.09 0.12 0.21
Charge for the year - 0.01 0.01
Deductions - - -
As at March 31, 2023 0.09 0.13 0.22
Charge for the year 0.19 0.01 0.20
Deductions -
As at March 31, 2024 D.28 0.14 0.42
MNET BLOCK -
As at Mareh 31, 2023 D72 | 0.04 0,76
As at March 31, 2024 0.98 0.03 1.01.
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MOTES TO THE AINANCIAL STATEMENTS A5 AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MIARCH 31, 2024
NOTE 10 : Other Financial Rs: In Lacs
As at March 31, A& at March 21,
202a 2023
Unsecured considersd good, unless otherwise stated
Prepaid Expenses 0.14 [ li]
Deposits with Government Authorities and others 4.75 4.79
Other Advances 0.05 .
id.94 440
MOTE 11 : ngg EiEh'“!ﬂ Amartmed tus:! As. In Lacs
As at March 31, Az-at March 31,
2024 023
Total Outstanding dues
To Micro Enterprises and Smiall Enterprises {Refer Maote 11 1) 97 .
To Other than Micro Enterprises ard Small Enterprises 0,05 i iral
1.03 0.71
R=. in Lakhs
A5 at March 31, Ais &t March 31,
24 03
Payabbe to Related parties - =
Qthers 103 0.7
1.03 0.7
NOTE11.1
Disclosure as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Entarprises Develo pmont Act, 2008, 10 the extent wscarteined, and as per notification
|number GSR 679 (E] dated 4th Septamber, 2015 s I Ly
Asatharch 31, | AsatMarch 31,
2024 2023
The principal amourt and the iHberest due thereon remaming unpaid to any supplier at the eng of each finarcial pear
- Principal amaumt due fo micrs and small enterprises -
- Interast dug on above - -
The amount of interest paid by the bayar in terme of saction 16 of @l Mizra, Sruall and Medium Enterprises Bovelopmont Act,
2006, along with the amaunt of the payrrent mede Lo the supplior Sayond the sppeintad day during rach accounting year.
Tha amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in mzking payment but without adding the interest specified
under the Micro, Smail and Medium Entergises Developmant Act, 3006
| The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the e=d of zach ALCOUNTING year. -
The amount of further interest remgining dus and payably even o the succeeding yeass, wntil such date when the interes) duos
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpase of disallowance of @ deductible sxpenditure undar setton 23 of -
the Micrs, Small and Medioen Faterorises Development Act, 2006
Trade Payable Agelng Schedule as on March 31, 2024 Rs. In Lacs
Dutstanding for following pereds from due date of payment
Particulzr "
el et codinll PN (SRR F—— Total
Dues Year
I} Total autstanding dues of micen enterprises and small enterprises a0.97 - - - 0.97
it} Tutal vutstanzing dues of creditor athes than micro eaterprises and small 1 ai I 008
enterprises '
Total Trade Payables 0.97 .06 - - - 1.03
Trade FaEbr_!igeiHE Sehedule as on March 31, 2023 R, In Lacs|
Outstanding for following pariods from due date of payment
Particular T
LUnkE tha
A | A i) 4.5 Voas | Misr than3 Yiacs Tetal
Duigs Yaar
il Tokal vutstznding dues af micro enterprises and small eotororses -
iil Turar.nut‘;l.:lr.ding dues of craditar sthar than mloro anterorises and smzll Diss o005 ] ) 871
enkarprises
Total Trade Payables 0,66 .05 0.
There are no desputed trade payable cultstanding as on March 31, 2024 ans March a1, 2023,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

NOTE 12 : Other Financial Liabilities (At Amortised Cost] Rs. In Lacs
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Employee related liabilities 2.70 3.05
2.70 3.05
Rs. In Lacs
Break up of finanial labilities carried at Amortised Cost Aol MR 3h. | (e,
T 2024 2023
Trade payables (Note 11} 1.03 0.71
Other financial liabllities (Note 12) 2.70 3.05
3.73 3.76
NOTE13 : Provisions Rs. In Lacs
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Frovision for Employee Benefits (Refer Note 23) 8.51 7.23
Provision for Standard Assets 2.20 2.20
10.71 9.43
NOTE 14 : Other Non- Financial Liahilities Rs. In Lacs
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Statutory Dues 0.82 0.37
.82 037

STy
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

MNOTE 15: EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL Hs. I Lacs

As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Authorized capital
26,860,000 {March 31,2023: 26,60,000) Equity Shares of Au. 10 each 266.00 266.00
266.00 2656.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
25,81,357 {March 31, 2023: 25,81 (2a7) Equity Shares of Bs. 10 sach 258.14 25814
258.14 25814
a) Reconciliation of the equity shares eulstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
As at March 31, a0 #s al March 31, 2023
Mo. of Shares Rs. in lacs Mo, of Shares Rs. in lacs
At the beginning of the year 15,81,357 258.14 2521357 758,14
Issued during the year . s _
Outstanding at the end of the year i 25,81,357 258,14 | 25,81,357 258.14

b) Rights, prefesences and restrictions attaching te equity shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the repayment of capital:
The Company has only one cless of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 par share. Ezch holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share, The|
|Company declares and pays dividends in indian Rupzes. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors, f any, is subject to the approval of the|
sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Mesting

In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of aquity shares will be entitled to recsie remaining #ssets of the Company, after distribution of all]
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in oroparion ta the aumber of =nulty shares held by the shareholdors.

c) Details of shares held by the Halding Company:

A5 ot March 31, 024 As at March 31, 2023
of th ehald
e & o = Ng, of Shares Rs. in lacs Mo. of Shares Rs. i locs
Halding Company: 25,81,357 158.14 25,81,357 258.14
Sastasundar Ventures Limited [Im‘:ludirlgjhﬂn?i held by its nomineas)®
g The details of sharehclders holding more than 5% equity shares 4 set balow: _
Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2024 ﬁ-ital.‘ March 31, 2073 ‘

MNo. of Shares % of holding Nao. of Shares % of holding
Sastasundar Ventures Lmited {including shares hald by ts nominges|® 25,841,357 10055 ¥5,81,357 1008
€] Details of promoters” shareholding percentage in the Compariy is 25 below:

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Mo. of Shares % of halding Mo, 6of Shares # af holding|
Equity Shares
[Equity shares of Rs. 10 each full pald ug)
Sastasuncar Ventures Limfted (including shares held by its naminsesy* 25,81,357 100% 2581357 1005
Total 25,81,357 100% 25,81,357 100%

| Thiere has been ne change in shareholding percentage during any of the vear a5 diselased sbove.

* As per records of the Comipany, Including its register of shareholdess § members and other declarations receivad from sharchalders regarding beneficial
1Fn1.'erest, thie above shareholding represents both legsl and Beneficial awnersh i of shares,

f} Mo ordinary shares have been reserved for issus under aptions & contrastsfeommitments for sale of shares/disinvestment gs at the Unaudited Dalance
Sheet Date.

B} Mo shares have been allotted by way of bonus shares or pursuant Lo contrects/has boer nought back by the company during the year of 5 years preceding
the date at which the Unoudited Balance Sheet is prepared:

h) Mo Convertible securities have been issued by the company during the year,

E‘Ju Calls are unpaid by any Director and officer of the company during the year,
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MICROSEC RESOURCES PRIVATE LIMITED

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATENMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

NOTE 16 : Other Equity Rs. In Lacs
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
A, Securities Premium 1,998.96 1,998.96
B. Reserve under Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 243.40 152.56
C. General Resarve 162.36 162.36
D. Retained Earnings 557.62 154.01
Total - Other equity 2,962.34 2,507.89
Movement in Securities premium Rs. In Lacs
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Opening Balance 1,998.96 1,998.596
Add : Premium on issue of Equity shares - -
Closing Balance 1,933.96 1,998 96
Movement in Reserve under Section 45-iC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 Rs. In Lacs
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Opening Balance 152.56 152.56
Add : Transferred from Stalement of Profit & Loss Account fer the year 80.54
Closing Balance 243.40 152 56
Movement in Retained Earnings Rs. In Lacs
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Opening Balance 194.01 226.92
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year 454.20 130.60)
Add: Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the year 0.25 {2.31)
Less: Appropriations for the year
Transferred to Reserve under Section 45-1C of Reserve Bank of Inidia Act, 1934 tor the
{90.84)
year
Closing Balance 557.62 194,01

MNature and Purpose of Reserve

{A. Securities Premium

B. Reserve under Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

C. General Reserve
The general reserve is a free reserve which is used from time ;
PUFPOSES,

|D. Retained Earnings
The Retainad Earning represents the cumulative pro

obligations.

SEcurity premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares.The reserve can be utilised only for limited purpose
such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

According to Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, every NBFC shall create a reserve fund and transfer therein a
sum nat less than 20% of its et Profit as disclosed in the Statement of Profit and Loss and before declaration of dividend.

its fram retained earnings for appropriation

of rneasure:-mer\% of defined benefit

-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 21, 2029

Mate 17 : Revenue @ Operation s, In Lags
Particulars 2023-29 2022-23
Interest income On Loan 76.03 74.07
(A 76.03 T4.07
Orther Financkal Income
Cividend Income 1.43 .88
Profit from sale of Investments 134,38 -
1F3ir Value Galn en investments camied at fair value thraugh prafit and loss 357.64 -
(8} 493.45 0.88
Total Revenue from Operations {A+B) 569.49 74.95
Pote 18 : Other Income Rs. In Lacs]
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
fa] Interest Income
On Income Tax Refund - 2.06
- 206
Mote 19 : Finance Cost fts. In Lar:sL
Particulars 2023-34 20222 gl
Interest on Loan 0.25 =
0.25 -
Mote 20 : Employee Benefits Expenze B3, In Lacs
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Salary and Bonus 35,41 31.35
Contribution to Provident funds 106 103
Gratulty expense [Refer Note 23] 1.60 1.22
A8.07 33.50

The Code on Social Security, 2020 {"Codde") relating to emploves henofits during emgloyment

Code becomes effective,

and past-employment benefits
recelved Presidentdal assent in September 2020, The Code has been published in the Gazetts of Indiz. However, the date on
which the Code will come into effect has not been nntificd and the final rulssfinterpratation have not yet bean issusd. The
Company wHl assess the tmpact of the Code when it comes it effect and will record any related impact in the period the

Note 21 : Other Expenses Hs. in Lacs
Particuiars 1013-24' 20232-33
Communication Expenses 0.09 0,10
Repairs and Maintenance 0.35 018
[Rates and Taxes 0.0% 015
Printing and Stationary 0.27 0.06
Bank and Demat chaiges 0.17 0,32
Traveling and Conveyance 221 245
(tegal and Professicnal fees 3.08
Pravision for Standard Assat -
Filling Fees 014
Fair Value Loss on investrments carried at fair value through profit and loss B
Loss on sale of investments =
Lioss on dealing in Equity Shares -
Membership & Subseription 0.21
Auditors’ Remuneration
Audit Fees .58
Limited Review 0.44
Out of Pocket Expenses 0,01
In gther capacity for certificates and other services A 021
Miscellancous expenses i\ 0.57
1 B.78
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Mote 33 : Earning Per Share

The lollowing reflects the income and share data used in the basic and dileted EPS computations:

Partlculars 2023-24 202223
qFruﬁt attributable to equity holders of the ecompany ([R5, in Lacs) 454,20 (30.60)
Waightad Average number of Equity shares {Nos.) 25,81,357 25.81,357
Basic and Diluted Earnings Par Share [Amt in Fis.} 17.60 11.1;!1’

|Mate 23 : Gratuity and other post-employmant benafit plans

Drefined cantribution plans

The Company makes contributions, determined 35 3 specified percentage of emoloyse selarles, in respect of qualilying emplovees towsrds Provident fund and|

1Ernplmm? State Insurance Scheme, which is 3 defined contribution plan. The cempany has ro obligatians other than to make the specified contributions, The
contributions are charged o Lhe Statement of Profit and Loss as they accrug.

Defined benefit plarns

The Company has a defined employee banefit olan in the form el gratulty. Every employee, who has complated five years or moro of services; iz entitled Lo pratuity
on ters not bess favourable than the provisions of the Fayment of Gratuity Act, 1992, Uability as on the balance sheet date s provided based on actuarial valuation
done by a certified actuary wsing project unil credit method. The Gratuity olan provides a lump Lum payment Lo vested om ployess at retirement, disability or
termeination of employment befng an amaunt based on the respective ermolayes’s last drawn salary and the rumber of years of employment with the Company. The
defined benefit pian expose the Company ta actuarial risks, such = langevity risk, interzit rate risk 2nd market {investment) risk,

The following t=bles summarise the companents of et benefi exnerse recognised in the statement of interim unaudited profit or loss and the funded seatys andl
amounts recognisad in the unaudited balance sheet for the respective plans;

Net employee benefits expense recognized in the employes cost. 5. in LacsL
Particulars 2023-79 20z2-23]
Current service cost 1.0m 1.09
Pasl service cost (vested) - {0.0R)
Interest cost on the net defined benefit fiabllin 0.51 0.21
Met Cost Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 160 1.22
Other Total Comprehanshe {Income)/ Loss RS, in L=2cs
Particulars | 2023-24 2022-73
) | Rs In lmes| R in lacs
Acluarial (galns) / Losses
- Changes in dermographls assumptions 0.03 -
- Changas in finantial assumptians .42 179
- Unexpected Experisnce (T8} {0.70)
Return on plan assets, exclading amount recopnized 7 not interes: aRponse - 10.01)
Compenents of defined benefit costs recognized in othar comprehessive (income)/ loss {0.33) ER
Audited Balance Shest
Defined Benefit asset f liabifity R in Lags
Particutass As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
Presant value of defined benefit abligation 8.57 .29
Fair valuz on plan assots .06 0.06
MNet liabiliny B8.51 7.43
Changes in the present value of the defined banefit orbliga tion are as follows : As. in Lacs
Particulars As ot March 31, 2023 | As a2t March 31, 2023
Cipening defined benefil ablipgation 7.29 2.98
Current sefvice cost 1,09 1.09
Past servics cast (visstod) E {10.08)
Interest cost 51 021
Fe-measurement (or Actuarial] (gain] / loss arising from
- Changes in finandlal assumptions 0.4 B L
- Changes in demographie assumptions 0.03
- Experience variance {i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions) [0.78) {0.70)
l'&;l-t Benefit Paig .
Clasing defined benefit abligation B.57 .29
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Changes in the falr value of plan assets are as follows : Rs. in Lacs
ParHEulars Asat March 31, 2024 | Asat March 31, 2023
Opening failr vatue of plan assets 0,06 fwie.
Interast Incoine 0.00 0.00
Emalayer Contributions -
Benefits paid = .
Return an plan assets, excluding amaunt recognised in net interes: sxpenze 10.00) (2.00}
Crosing fair value of plan assets ' 0.06 0.06
The majer categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fal value of total plan assets dre as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | Ac at March 31, 2023
Imveskmonts in insurance managed fund 100 100%

The Princlpal assumptions used in determining gratubty abligation for the :umpnm,:‘s plan are a3 follows B in Lacs
Particulars As at March 31, 2028 | As at fMarch 31, 2023
Discount rate 6.9E% T.37%
Expected rate of return on assets 6.98% 120
Future salary increases 10, 00% 10,008

" 1ALM 2012-2015 TALM 2012-2014

Martality Rate
H i ULTIMATE| ULTIMATE
Contribution to defined contribution plans recognlzed as #xpense are as under | Rs. in Lags)
Particulars 2023-29 243
Cantribution to Provedent gad other tund 1.08 1.03
Assumptions sensitivity anabysis for stgnificant assumptions s as below: - Rs. Im Lack
Assumptions As at March 31, 2024 | As al March 31, 2023
Sensitivity Level

Discount Rats

Increase by 0.5% 1.86 B.64
Decraase 0.5% 836 B3
Salary Growth Rate

Increass by 0.5% £.95 760
Cacreass 0.5% 221 673
Mortality Rate

Increzse by 10% 8.57 728
Decrease 10% B.58 731
Attrition Rate

tncrease by 0.5% B.5T 7.29
Decrease 0.5% E.58 7.30
Expectad payment for future yesrs H5. In Lacs
esr Az at March 31, 2024 | Ax af March 31, 2023
Within the next 12 months (nest annoal repecting period) .04 003
Between 2 and 5 years 017 16
Eetween b and 10 years 5.62 036
Beyond 10 years IE.WI 34.50
| Tobul expected payments 33.83| 35.06

estimated term of the abligations,

Il'dm 24 Contingent liphilities, commitments and leasing arrangementy

nts

The weighted average duralion of the defined benefit abligation as at March 31,2034 Is 22 years (March 31, 2023 is 24 yesrs).

Discount rate; The discount rabe is based on the 5 years povernment bond wields 254t the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations,

Expecled rate of retum on plan assets: This is based on the expectation of the average fong term rate of return axpected on investments of the fund during Lhi

Salary eswlation rie: The estimates of tuture salsry incresses considered 1Eking inta sccount the infiztion, seniarity, promotion and olher relevant factors,

Rs. In Lacs

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Estimated amount of contracts remalning ta be executed on capital aocaunt.

Tatal
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LI‘IEITETU THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS A5 AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Mote 24 b : Contingent Liabilities
Claims against the Company not acknowletlged as debits:

Rs. In Lacs

As at Mareh 31, 2024

Azt March 31, 2023

Particulars

Disputed Income Tax Demand in Appeal 75.62 7562
Dispuled Income Tax Samand In Income Tax Appslate Tribunal 1.02 1.02
Total T6.64 7664

a) Holding Company
Sastasuntar Yentures Lmited

t| Other Helated Parties
Fellow Subsidiary Company

Genu Fath Labs Limited

d} Key Management Personngl
Mr. Barwari Lal bittal

Mr. Ravi Kant Sharma
Mr. Parimal Kumar Chattaraj
Mr. Vinay Khaitan

Mr. Ramesh Kurvar Sharma
Mr. Sanjay Agarwal

b} Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company
Microser Wealth Management Limited

Sastasundar Health Buddy Limited

Wyioy Technologies Privete Limited

The Campany has besn advised by its lawyers that none of the clairts are tenable and is
books. The future cash flows on account of the abowo cansat be petarmired unless th
reimiursements s expected to arfze to the Company 7 respect of abiave cases,

Note 25 : Name of related partie; and description of relationship
Related parties whers contral eilsts

Director
Director
Director

{Whale time Cirecnr in Fellow fssocate

OE, 123001

therefare conlesting the sarme znd hence has not besn provided for in the
& judgerments/decisions are recaived from Lhe ultimate judical forums. No

Flinkarl Health Limited iFarmedy Sastzsundar Marketplace Limited upto

[Whela time Direetar in Fellow Subsdiary Sastasundar Health Buddy Limited)
[Employes and Man-Exomutive Diractor in Bollowe Su bsidiaries]

Ralated party transactions during the year; Rs, Inm Lacs
Transactions Transaclions [Payable)/Recaivable
. . during the year during the year
SLND Related Parties Mature of Transactions ended March 31, | ended March 31, | As at March 31,2024 | As at March 31, 2023
2024 2023
Loan Glven .00 1360
Loan Refunded 3380 15.00
i Myloy Technologies Private [ Interest Incoms 538 7.13 5
Limlted Repayment of Interog: Income 6.42 T
[Met of TDS)
Receivabins - a5.24 79.62
Loan Taken 60,00 .
HRepayment of Laan Taken al.00
? Sastasundar Ventures Lig Interest [ncome 0.25% -
Repayrrenl of Intarest (ncome .35 .
Lﬂﬂn-ﬂe’rundﬂd ) 1581 x )
3 Winay Khaitan {including Intarest) g
Interest |ncome - 0,049 2
Loam Ghwen - 10.00 -
Loan Eefunded 10,00 - -
4 Ramesh Kumar Sharma Interest Income .64 .67 .
Repayment of Interest Income 131 - E -
Racaivables - - 1067
Laan Given - 2,50 -
5 Sanjay Agarwal Interest Incame 0.24 0,17 = -
Recenables - - 2.91 267
6 Microsec Wealth Refund of Investmant |2 PMS - 15.00 - .
Management Limited Professional Fees Paid 2.10 1.85 0.58 .31

except 28 disclosed above,

Terms and conditions of transactions with related partles

The transactions from related parties are made an terms equivalent to those thalg
unsecurgd and interest free and settlement ocours (n cash. There hava h.:r-n #a
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Nate 26 : Segiment Reporting

Mote 27 : Fair value measurgment

The Company operates in only one business segment e, business of Fnancing and In only one p=og
reportable segments undar Ind AS - 108 - Operating Segments,

rAphic segmant Le |ndia, Accordingly there are no soparate

Letoul below, is a comparisen by class of the carrying amounts and fzir value of the Company fingncial instruments, athar than thoss with carrying amounts that
are reasorsbie approvimations of fair values:

Rs. In Lacs
Carrying Value as at Fair Value as at
Particuiars Asat March 31, | Asat March3l, | Asat March 21, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
024 W3

1] Financial Assets S
8) Measured at Fair Value through Profit & Loss {PUTPL)

Investment in Unguoted Mutual Funds 1,533.34 107411 1,533.34 107411
Invastment b5 Quoted Equity Shares 127,92 91.92 127.92 91,97
b} Measured at Amortized Cost

{1} £ash and cash equivalants 7.31 B.62 7.31 B.62
(i) Laans BTG.56 ByE 38 BTG, 56 27R.38
(i} tnvestments &00.00 00,00 GO0, 00 G00.00

iv) Cthes flnancial assets 0.83 0,55 0.83 0.56
Total Financial Assets 3,146.36 2,653.59 3,146.36 2,653.59
{Ii} Financial Liabilities

a) Measured at Amortized Cost

i) Trade payables 1.03 0.71 1.03 C.71
il] Otbver financial liabitithes 270 345 270 3.05
Total Financial Liabilities 37 3.76 3.73 3.76

term maturities of these instruments.

MNote 28 : Valuation pringiples

The management assessed that tash and cash equivalents, trade peyables and other firsncial lizbilties zpproximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short:

Fair valse is the price that would be raceived to sall an assat or paid ta transfer a Hakillly in an orderly transaction in the principal jor mast advantageous) market at
the measurement date under current markst conditlons (i.e,, an exit price], regardless ot whether that price is directly observable or estimated using 2 valuation
technique. In arder to show how fair values have been derived, financial lnst-uments are classified hased on 3 hierarchy of valuation techniques, 25 exslained in

Mote 29.1.

Mote 29 : Falr Walue Hierarchy of assets and Habilities

. The carrying amount and fair value measuremont hicrarchy for assets and laklities az 2t March 31, 7924 ju as felloves:

Mote 29.1 : Valuation technigque wsed

;A.'r_,sets Rs Iniacs
Particulars Faiir Value through Profit & Loss Accounts

Carrylng Value Falr Value Level -1 Level-2 Level-3 Tokal
Investment in Unguated Mutual Fends 1,533.34 1,533.34 - 1,533.34 - 1,533.34
Investment in Quoted Equity Shares 127.92 127.02 127.92 | . - 1z7.92
Total 1,561.26 1,661.26 | 127.592 j 1,533.34 - 1,661.26
Il The carrying amount and (i value measurement hicrarchy for assets and lobiltitles as at March 31, 2023 s as follows:
Asseks Rs. In Lacs
Particulars Fair Valua through Profit B Loss Accounts

Carrying Valua | Fair Value Lavel - 1 Lol -2 Level- 3 Total
Investmient in Unguoted Mutual Funds 1,074.11 | 1,074.11 - 1.074.11 - 107411
Investrnent In Quoled Eguity Shares 91.52 G102 91,92 - 91.82
Tatal 1,166.03 116803 9132 107411 - 1,166.03

For Investment in Unquoted Mutual Fund & Equity Instruments

The majorily of ecuity instruments are actively traded on pubfic stock exchangss with readily avallable active prices on a regular basis, Such instruments are
classified a5 Lewvel 1. Units held in funds are measured based on their published met asser value [Nav), taking into account redempiion andfor other restrictions,
Such instruments are generally Level 2. Equity instruments o non-listed entites induded Imvestrient in private equity funds are fnitially recognised ot Iransacf.iu-nh
price and re-measured (Lo the extent infarmation is avallabi=) and valued on a case-by-case and classifled =5 Level 3,

Thers hawe bean no transfer batween Leved 1, 2 and 3 during the year ended March 31,2024 and March 31, 2023,

P
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LHQTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Mote 30; Financial risk management objectives and podicies

The Company's financial lkbilities comprise tradse payables and othier gayables, Tre main purposs of these financial labiities is to finance the Company's aperation.
The Company's financial assets Include investments, loans, & other recelvabies and cash & cash eguivalents. The Company |5 exposed To market risk, credit risk and
liquidley risk, The Company's senior management has tha averal respons‘hility for establishing and governing the Company’s linancial risy management framework
and devaloping and monitoring the Company’s linancial risk management poicies, The Company's financial risk minnasgement policies are established 1o identify apd]
afialyze the risks faced by the Compary, to set and manlior aopropriate cantrals,

Note 30.1: Market Risk

[Market risk fs thie risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a finandial (nstrument wil fuctuate because of changes In mrarket prices. Markal risk cumpr‘rsesL
three type of risk i.e. currency risk, interest rate risk and otker price risk such a5 eommodity price risk and equity price risk, Financial instruments affecled by market
risk include trade payable, trade recefvables, bBosrawings atz. Currency risk is not applicable to the Lompany (L 15 not Invalved in substantia! fareign currengy
transaclicns, Interest Rate sk is not applicabie to the Com pany as It has has rot taken any dobt,

|Mote 30.1,1.; Price Risk
Thi Company’s investement in listed equity securilics and mutual funds are susceptible to market price risk ansing from uncertaintios shout futune vaiues af the

Investment securlties. The Company ma nages the equity price «sk through diversification and by placlng dimits on individua| and total Instruments, Reports an the
qpurtfnlin are submitted to the Company’s senior management on & regular basis: The Company’'s Board of Dirsctors reviews and dpproves all investment declsions,

Price sensitivity analysis
Fallowlng table provides the sensitiviey impact 1o a 1% Fppreciation/deciing io MAVY of mutual fund a-d readily svailable price of fisted equities investments 25 at the
Balance Sheet date

g5, In Lacs
Az at March 31, 2024 | As at Mareh 31, 2023

Partleulars Gain f {Lass) Gain / [Loss)
WY of mutual funds and readily avaitable price of listed equities investawents appreciztes by L% 16.61 11.66
MAaY el mutual funds and readily availzblo price of lsted pguities invesiments decllnes by 1% {16.61) [11.68)

Mote 30.2 - Cradit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will nat meet Its chiigations resulting in fingncial loss to the Company. Credit risk arises primarlly from financial assets such as
trade receivables, bank balances, laans, mestments ond other financial assats, AL pach reporting date, the Company measures |oss sliawancs for cartain clast af
Hﬂnaﬂtiai assets based on historical trend, industry practises and the busisess snviran ment in which the Campany operatos,

Credit risk with respect (o trade receivabie s not gpplicable as there & no autstand ing trade reselvablas, Crodit rsk #rising from Investments, fingneial nstruments
and bakances with barks is limited because the counterpanties are ban ks and recogrilzed financial institutions with high credit worthingas,

[Mote 30.3 - Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficully in meeting the ablizations associatad with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash
or another financial asset, The Company's approach to maraging lquidity £ Lo ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficeent Bouidity to meet its liabilisies
when they are dus, Management manitors rolling forecasts of the Company's iquidicy positian snd fash and cash enuivalonts on the basks of akpectod cash flows.
The Company tzkes into accaunt thie liquidity of tha market n which Lhe antity operates,

Maturities of Flnancial Liabilities
The table below analyzes tha Company's Financial Labilties inte relevant maturity groupings based on Lheir conteectu | maburities -

As AL March 31, 2024 Rs, In Lacs
t
Liabilizies I'EE;E::" 1 1-2 Years 2-3 Yeary More than 3 Years Total
Financlal Liakilities
Trade payables 103 - . - 1.03
Other financizl labilitles 270 - - : 70
Total Financial Liabifities 3,73 - . - 3173
As At March 31, 2023 RS, In Lacy
1
|Uabilities I'“:.:::" 1-2 Years 2-3 Yeors Meare than 3 Years Total
Financial Liabifities
lrade payables 0.7 : - - 071
|other fimancia labilities 3.08 3.08
[Total Financial Liabilities 3.76 - - 3.76 |
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Mote 31  Capital management
Far the purpese of the Company’s capital management, c=pital includes issued equity capial, security presmivm and 3l ekher equity reserves attributable 1o tﬂm1
equity halders of the Company,

The Company's objectives when managing capital s ta safeguand continuity, maintain o strong credit rating and healthy capital rmtos in arder 1o sUpport s
business and provide adequate return (o shareholders through continuing growth and maximise the shareholders valug. Thi Company manages its capital structure|
and makes adjustments in light of changes [n economic conditions. To mal-tain ar adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend paywmient Lo
shareholders, return capital to sharoholders oF istue new sha e,

[Note 32, Disclosure of Ratios

5¢ Na. Ratios MNurmerator Denominator Current Yaar Frovious Year Varlance () iz for Fanom
[If abowe 355}
5 1o risk- ighted asset
1 f::a PlisA-ihiad aseet 2,453.08 2,891.56 118.50% 125.30% 5A42% NA
| 3 Tier [ CHAR . 2942.37 149156 118407% 124.32% -5.40% A
3 Tier || CRAR 10,71 2449196 0.43% 0, 48% -10.90% NA
Liguidity Coverzgs]
ratio has bapn
Inereased  dug Lo
: relund of loan gven
4 Liguldity Cowverage tatio 4854 v.50 E51.48% 264, 29% 195.50% and that e
subiseguently
imvested  in Uguid
Fund,

Wote 33. Uthlisation of Borrowed Fund & Share Premium

The Company has el received any fund from any persan{s) or eptity(les), including Toreign entitizs (Funding Party) with the understanding [whether recorded in
writing pr otherwise) Lrat the Comapany shall: (a) directly o indirectly lend or invest in ather persens or entitios identified in 2y matner whatssever by ar on behall
of the Funding Party (Ulimate Beneficlaried) ar (b) previde any puarantee, sacurity or the Lke on behalt of the ultimate beneficiarios,

The Company has not advanced or lent or invested Tunds to any other persons) o entity|iog), including foreign entities {intermediaries) with the understanding
that the Intermediary shall. (a] directly or indirectly kerd or invest in other persans or entities identitieg In any manner whatsoeger by ar on behalf of the Company
(Ultimati Beneficiaries) oe {b] provide any puarantoe, security oo the ke to or an behalf of the Uitimate Reneficiaries.

Note 34, Particulars required to be furnished by the NEFC's as per paragraph 13 of @ Mon-Bznking Findnclal Company Man-Systemically Important Non-Deposit
Taking Cormpany { Rasere Bank) Directions, 2016 tssued by RSI ure given in Annesure- | attachod herewilh,

Information purssant ta circular ODORACCREC N 20/ 21,04 D18/2022-23 dated 19.04.3022 on "Disclosures In Financizl Stat=msnts - Motes to Accounts af NBECs”
are giver in Annexure- || attachad herowith

Mote 35, Composite scheme of arrangement for demerger and amalpamation

During the previous year, the Basrd of Direclors at its meeting neld on 27th March, 2022 approved & Composite Scheme of Arrangement {the Scheme] for
Demedgar and Amalgamalion amangst Sastasundar Ventures Umited I"Demerged Company' o ‘Amalgamated Company') and Microsee Resourcas Private Limited
["Resulting Campany®) and Sastasundar Fealthbuddy Limited {"Amialgamating Company®) under Sections 230 1o 757 and other relevant provisians of the
Companias Act, 2013 and the rubes made there under, with offect frem 1 Aprl, 2033 ["the Appeinted Rate’ ). Upon recelpt of requisite approvals of the concermad
regulstory autharties, the scheme will be recognised in the financial results.

As par the provislons of paragraph 3(b] of Parl 1A} of the SER) Master Circular datod lune 20, 2025, the Amialgamated company {post Amplgamation) is requlred ¢
maintain pro-public shareholding of minimom 25% including S8 of Amzlgamating Comaany. As 2 part of the process, the zmalzamated company has filod an
application with Securities and Exchange Board of india {SER(] secking exemption fiom the aforesaid provision of SEBI Master Circular dated June 20, 2023, for
consideration of Mitsublshi Corporation, fapen and Rohto Pharmacenticals Cornpany Limited, fapan, the public sharcholder of Amalgamating Company as pulslic
shareholders of Amalgsmated Company, We hereby infarm that SEBI vide fetter dabed January 30, 2024 kos informed the amalgamated company that the|
compelent authority has not acceded the amalgamated] company's request, The Designated Stock Exchinge has nat granted approval to the Scheme. The Company)
Is eplaring for approprizte steps in this regard for further course of action,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH a1, 2024

Note 36, Other Statutory Informations:

Kote 36.1. Benami Property
Mo proceeding has been initiated or pending agains: the groug for halding 2 ny benami properly under the Benami Transactions [Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45 of 1988)
and rules made thersunder.

Note 36.2. Wiliul Defaulter
The Company is not 2 declared wilful defaulter by any bank or Fnanciz] insUL ion orothar leader,

Note 36.3. Relationship with Struck off Companies
The Company has na transactions wilh companies struck off undar saction 248 of the Campariles Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 15956,

Note 36.4, Undisclosed Income

The Company doss net have ary such transaclion which is nat recarded in the baoks of 2ccounts that has been surrendared or disclosed as incame during the year
endes March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2033 in the lax assasments under the [Roomee Tan Act, 1961 [such as, search or survey o any other relevant provisions of the|
Income Tax Act, 1961)

Mote 36,5, Crypto Currency
The Company has nel traded ar invested in Cryptocy rrencyd Virualourrency transactions / Balancas during the current linancizl year and previous financial year.

Note 38.6. The Company Is act gelting covered under sec 135 of the Companies Act 2013 and as such the provisions of C5R are not applicable on the Company,
Hﬂm 36,7, The Company do not hawve any charges or satlsfacton which is ¥l ta be reglstored with ROC beyvand tha statutery perfod.

Nate 36.8. The Company has complied with the number cf layers preseribed under clagse {57) of section 2 of 1he Companies Act read with Cormpanies [Restriction
an number of layers) Rules, 2017

”Hnte 36.9. Mo dividend has been pald or proposed by the Company turing the fimancisl year,

Mote 37. With respect to Frovise to Rule 3{1) of the Companies (Accauns) Rules, 2314, the Computny has used such 2ccounting seftwars far main Laming its boaks of]
account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the tame has been operated throwghout the year for all transzctions recorded in the
saftware and the audit trall feature has not been tempernd with ang the audit trail has Been preserved by the company as per the stabutany requirements far
recard retenticn.

Note 3B. Previows year figures have been regroupadfreclassified, where recessary, to conlirm 1o current year classifica o,
AL per cur feport of even date

LFDf 5 K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directars
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 306033E/E300272

Jamls Jpfn SR B )

1 (2.1 St ) _—
Mamila Lain Hanwari Lal Mitcal Ravi Kant Sharma
Partner Diractor Director
|Membarship No, DI : 00365809 Dim : 00364066
Place: Kolkats

Date: 29th May, 2024
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ANNEXURE - | REFERRED TO IN NOTE NO. 34 OF NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ANNEXED AS PER RESERVE BANK OF INDIA PRUDENTIAL NORMS

Annenure to the Financial Statements of a Mon Banking Financial Company as at March 31, 2024
As required In terms of paragraph 19 of g Nor-Banking Financial Company - Mon-Systemically Impertant Mon-Deposit Taking Company [Reserve Bank of India)
Directions, 2016

Rs. in La<s
Particulars
Arvsount andi mount
Liabilitles side _ cutstancing |  Amount Overdue
1. (Loans and advances avalled by the NBFCs inclusive of intarast accrued thereon but not pakd
3} |Debentures - - Secured B =

U‘ste:ure[:l . %
{Gther than falling within the meariag of public doposits)

b) |Deferred Credits

(£} [Terms Loans

(d} |Inter-corporate loans and borrawing
g} |Commercial Pagur -
{f]_[Public Depaosits™ - -
g} |Other loans - =
h) |Advance trom bedy corporates

* Piease see Note 1 Below

2. |Break-up of (1){) above{Dutstanding public deposits inclusive of Inbarest accrued thereon but not paid) -

[2] |lmthe form af Unsecured debentures . A, M. A,

(&) In the fore of garlly secured dobentures, e, debentures whorm thare i5'a shorsfall in the vallue of A MR
SECurlity . i A

(e} [Other publc deposits M. A N, &4,

Assatd Side: Amount putstanding

3. |Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills recejables [other than those Induded In {4) bzl :

[a] | Securad
{b] | Unsecired B76.08
4. |Break-up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities :
i) |Leass assets including lease rentals undsr sunery debiors
{a} Fnancial Leasa
[:10 Dperating Lazse
(i) |5tock on hire including hire charpas under sundry dabtors:
{3) Assets on hire 3
k) Repossecsad Azsels
{ii} |Other loans counting towards AFC activities (1]
{2l Loan where assets hive been reposessed
(b Loans ather than [a) shove .
5. [Break-up of investmeants: Amount oulstanding
Current Investmeants
1 |Quoted;

i} Shares ¢ (a) Equity -
tb) Froferences z

(M) Debentures and Sonds

i) Units af mutual funds "

[iv) Sovernmont Securities

iv] Others
F |.|I'H|I'.ID!EI:|:.
[i] Shares ; (a) Eauily =
[b] Predersnce !
{ii] Debentuses and Bonds =
(i} Units af mutuai funds 5191 |

[iw) Gowerament Securitips =
(v} Dthers 5
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ANNEXURE - | REFERRED TO [N NOTE NO. 34 OF NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JANNEXED AS PER RESERVE BANK OF INDIA PRUDENTLAL NORMS

As. In Laes

Long Term Investments:
1 |Quoted:
i1 Shares : {2) Equity 127.92
(b} Preferanca -
[ii} Debentures and Bonds -
illi} Units of mutual funds -
i) Gevernment Securitios =
[w] Cthiars -
2 (Unguoted:
(] Shares : {a} Equity &00.00
[b] Preference -
Il Cebentures and Bonds -
(iii} Wnits of mutual funds 1.481.43
{iv) Gowernment Securities -
v} Units af Altermative Investment Fund -
[wi) Cthvors
B. | Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as n [3) and (4) above
Pleass soe note 2 below

Category Amount net of provisions
Secured Unsecured Total

1 Related Parties
(&) Subsidiaries .
{b] Cornpanies inthe same group - 4534 45.24
{£] Dlher ralated parties = 91 20
2 Other than rolated parties - 82881 478.81
Total NIl B76.96 H76.96
7. |investor group-wise lassification of all Investments {eurrent and long-tarm) in shares and securities [Both quoted and unguoted):
Plegse s2e note 3 holow

Market Value/
Category Breakup or fair value
or NAY

Book Value [Net of
Prowrsions)

1 Related Partieg**
(7] Subsidiaries 1,061.24 000K
1] Companics in the same group = B
{£] Other related parties = i
2 Other than related parties L661.26 1,661.26
Total 2,722.50 2,261.26
T AL par Accounting Standacd of 1CA|
[Please see Note 3 below)
B. |Other Information
Particulars Amount [Rs. in Lacs)
(i} |Gross Nom-Performing Assets ==
{a) Related Parlles
(b] Other than related parties
{il} |Mat Non-Pesiorming Assers
ta} Aelaled Partias
(B} Other tham related parlies
{ilE} |Assets acguired in satisfaction of deot
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ANNEXURE - | REFERRED TO IN NOTE NO. 34 OF NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HHN NEXED AS PER RESERVE BANK OF INDIA PRUDENTIAL NORMS

Notes:

1 Asdefined in pointixic) of Parzgraph 2 of Chaptes 2 of the Nun-Banking Firzncial, Non-Sysiemically Impartant (Mon-Depeslt Accepting or Helding) Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016,

2 Provisioning norms shall ba applicable as prescribed In the Non-Ba nking Financlal Non-Systamically Imaortant [Mon-Depasit Aceepting or Holding) Companies
{Reserne Bank) Directions, 2016,

3 All Accounting Standards and Guidance Motes ssued by The Institute of Chartered Aecountants af India are applicatile Including for valuation of investments
@nd other assets as also soquired In satislaction of debt, However, Market value in respect of Quoted Investments and bresk up / fair value / MAV In respect
of Ungquoted Investments should Be discloced irrespective ol whether they are classified a5 lang t=rm or currest In cofumn [5] above.

A5 per our repart of even date

For 5 K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directars

Chartered Accountants
1ﬁrm Registration No: 306033E/E300272

T—.\. N — o o
o= \I . . =]
s e e
! = @Y

h a lain Hanwari Lal Mittal Ravi Kant Sharma
Partmer Directar Diirector

Mumb-el'shlp Ne. 061299 DIN : DO365E09 DIN : DOZEIDEE

Place: Kolkata
Date: 29th May, 2024
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ANMEXLIRE- || REFERRED TO IN NOTE NO. 34 OF MOTES ON FINANCLAL STATEMENTS
ANMEXED AS PER RESERVE BANK OF INDIA PRUDENTIAL NORMS
Annexure to tha Financial Statements of a Nan Banking Financial Company as at March 31, 2024
Infarmation in pursuant to circular DORACC,REC N, 20/21.09,618/2022-23 dated 19.04. 2022 on "Disclosures in Financial Statements - Notes to Accounts of
|MEFCs"
| EXFOSUIRE;
1. Exposura to Aral Estate Sector {Rs. in Lucs]
Category Current year Previous Yeor
i) Direct euposure: = == =
a) Residential Mortgages - o - = - I
 Lending fuily secured by martgages on residential property - ] ) = 1= = B
b] Commercial feal Estate - = = o - -
Lending secured by mortgages o commercial real estate — B - B
€} Investments In Mortgags-Backed Securities (MBS] and other secy fitized exposurs — — ] o
| Residential == o __ - == -
il Commercial Real Estate _= = — o . i <)
i indirect Fxposure - N =" == T
Fund bised and non-fund based exposures on Natlonal Housing Bank and Hevsing Financs Companles -
Tolal Exposure to Real Estate Sector - .
2, Exposure ta Capital Market {Rs. In Laes)
Category Current year Previows Year
it Direct investment in equity shases, convartible bands, convertible cebentures and umits of efuily orented 1,200.3% 1,744,586
miutual fuiils = B -
ii}ﬁ.duarw:: apainst sharas [ hnncrsf’ debenturas o cthes Fu:unt-es Tor rviestmant in s & Securities = T
iii} Advances against sharas / bonds / debentures o gthar Securlli_m_Fnr Ay ather purpose a = — = — 2 -
v} Atlvances against Calllural shares / bonds / debentures or other sscuritios far any other puroosa where - -
the primany securitydoss not fully cover the advances s = = - o - 4
v} Secured and unsecured advances Lo stockbrokers and guzrantess issued on behall of stockurokers and
fmarket makers —— = S . _— —_— =
vij Loans samctiooed to corporates against the securily of shares / bonds [ debentures or other =2CUrITies for
meeting promoter's contrittion to the squity of new compgasios = - v
Vi) Bridge loans W companies against expected equily Nows / s - o Felr = -
Hil) Underwriting commiitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of primary issue of shares or convertible -
banes o convertible debientores or enity of equity ariented mutual funds - o X
I Financing to stockbrokers for mirgin tradicg N . ) - = - =
#) All sxposures to Alternative I nvestment Funds: - - - - - =
i) Categary | = =—r - .
{0 Cotegory (1 - o == - -
__tl_i_l] Catepory Nl - - - - = = =
Tokal exposure to capital market 2,209.35 1,744.56
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ANNEXLIRE- || REFERRED TO [N NOTE NG, 34 OF NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ANNEXED AS PER RESERVE BANK OF INDIA PRUDENTIAL NORMS

Annexurs to the Financial Statements of a Mon Banking Financial Company as at March 31, 2024
Information in pursuant o circulor OR.ACC.REC. No.20/21,04.018/2022-23 dated 15.04,2022 on "Disclosures in Financhal Statamants - Motes to Accounts

of NBFCs"
EXPOSURE:
3. Sectoral Exposure [R5 in Lacs)
Current yoar Pravious Year
Total Exposure Tokal Exposurs
(includes an Eurcantagar tinclusdes on Percentage af
Sectors P kal :
balance sheet and Gross NP Ay G:i“ﬂ::;i: It':t balanoe shoel and Gross NFAs arviss NPA:-I!.I:I“lutaI
wil-balance sheet P afiohatance shest exposure In thal
e sectar
exposure) EAROSLNE]
1. Agriculture and Allied
Activities : . z
2. industry — & 2 = - _
3. Services . = | =1 rym® =
4. Personalloans === 2 il - .
 Indwiduals i _ 2.091 N - 13.34 | e .
Other Lozn _ 874.05 BE5.04
Total of Personal Loans + BAEGE ) . 878,38 )
Oithers =y — -
5. Others . = 1 -
4. Irtra Growp Exposures [Rs. in Lacs)
Catagory Current yoar Previous Year
i) Total amount of intra-group exposures S _ 64815 G556
i) Total amount of top 28 Intra-group exposuras _ _ E4R.1S B32.96
i) Percentape of intra-group exposures to total exposure of the NBFC on borrowersfcustomars {im %) 20.65% _ 2620%

5. Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposuros
NISFCs shll distlose details of s unhedged foreign corrency exposures, Further, it shall 2lse discless their polities to manage curreney induced rist.
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